SENATE FI NANCE COW TTEE
FOURTH SPECI AL SESSI ON
June 1, 2016
9:02 a.m

9:02: 01 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair MacKinnon called the Senate Finance Committee
nmeeting to order at 9:02 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Anna MacKi nnon, Co-Chair
Senat or Peter M cciche, Vice-Chair
Senator dick Bishop

Senat or M ke Dunl eavy

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senat or Donny d son

VEMBERS ABSENT

Senator Pete Kelly, Co-Chair

ALSO PRESENT

Fred Parady, Deputy Conmm ssioner, Departnent of Conmmerce,
Comuni ty, and Economic Devel oprent; Lori W ng- Hei er,
Director, Division of Insurance, Departnment of Comrerce,
Community and Econom c Devel opnent; Senator Cathy G essel;
Senator M a Costell o.

SUMVARY

CSHB 374( FI N)
REI NSURANCE PROGRAM HEALTH I NS. WAl VERS

CSHB 374(FIN) was HEARD and HELD in commttee for
further consideration.

#hb374
CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO. 374(FI N

"An Act relating to coverage under a state plan
provided by the Conprehensive Health Insurance
Associ ation; establishing the Alaska conprehensive



health insurance fund; relating to a reinsurance
program relating to the definition of 'residents who
are high risks'; relating to an application for a
wai ver for state innovation for health care insurance;
and providing for an effective date.”

9:03:13 AM

FRED PARADY, DEPUTY COW SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF COMVERCE
COVVUNI TY, AND ECONOM C DEVELOPMENT, introduced hinself.

9:03: 20 AM

LORI W NG HEl ER, Dl RECTOR, Dl VI SI ON OF | NSURANCE
DEPARTMENT OF COMVERCE, COVMUNI TY AND ECONOM C DEVELOPIVENT,
i ntroduced herself.

M. Parady explained that the bill would initially address
a conplex set of issues. The bill would nmake changes to the
Al aska Insurance Code for assessnments nade under a
rei nsurance program established to reinsure "residents who
are high risks." As the code is currently witten, a nmenber
of the reinsurance program may offset 50 percent of the
anount of the assessnment nmade under the reinsurance program
(and other state health insurance prograns) as a premum
tax credit. The bill would renove the assessments nade in
relation to the high risk reinsurance program from the
of fset provision. The bill also would anmend the definition
of "residents who are high risks."” These changes were
intended to provide a nechanismto help insurers spread the
risk of high-cost clainms in the individual health insurance
market. The bill also would authorize legislation to allow
the state to seek a waiver of certain requirenents under
the Affordable Care Act (ACA).

Co-Chair MacKinnon surmsed that the state was [|osing
insurance carriers. She felt that the two issues in the
bill were the losing of carriers and the high cost of
insurance. M. Parady replied that the assertion was
generally correct. He announced that there were 23,000
Al askans in the individual insurance market, who woul d not
have access to insurance if the one provider left the
state. The bill was an attenpt to sustain the system and
get through the crisis in the near term

Senator Bi shop wondered whether Congress was intending to
fix the issue of the risk corridor.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 2 06/01/16 9:02 A M



Ms. Wng-Heier replied that the congress had not vyet
addressed the risk «corridor. She stated the state's
congressi onal del egation was aware of the risk corridor.

Co-Chair MacKi nnon surm sed that, under ACA, there was a
subsidy from the federal governnent as an incentive to
cover Alaskans that may or may not have been insured. She
felt that the federal governnment was stepping back fromthe
subsidy. She wanted to know why this was an issue for
Al aska. Ms. W ng- Hei er responded that the federal
government had three subsidies: reinsurance program risk
corridor, and risk adjustnent. She stated that two of those
prograns would end in 2016. The prograns were neant to
stabilize the market.

9: 09: 35 AM

Vice-Chair Mcciche wondered how the individuals were
covered prior to ACA Ms. Wng-Heier replied that many of
the individuals were in ACH A in the high risk pool. She
stated that sonme were in ACH A but the majority mgrated
to ACA in 2014. She stated that others had enroll ed because
of the guaranteed enrollnent provision. She remarked that
many could not afford the premumin ACH A She stated that
the 495 people were driving the narket.

Vice-Chair Mcciche wondered how the costs were shifted to
the state. Ms. Wng-Heier replied that the $55 nillion
| ooked at the reinsurance fee, and the tax that was paid to
the federal government. She stated that the $55 nmillion
| ooked to stabilize rates between 15 and 18 percent. She
stated that a healthy rate increase was expected.

M. Parady furthered that ACHIA had a narrower definition
of high cost clainms of the covered areas. He stated that
there were uninsurable people under the forner regine, who
wer e now under guaranteed coverage.

Senat or Hoffrman queried a history of ACH A M. Wng-Heier
replied that ACHIA was forned in the 1980s, because there
were many sick Al askans who could not receive insurance
because the nmarket would not accept them In the 1980s, the
mar ket was all owed to underwrite.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 3 06/01/16 9:02 A M



Senat or Hof f man queried the experience of other states. M.
Wng-Heier replied that the high-risk pools were expiring,
because of the ACA

9:14: 34 AM

Senator Hoffman wondered whether other states had to
provide high checks in the transition. M. Wng-Heier
replied that the only other state exam ning reinsurance was
Or egon.

Senator Bishop noted that the federal governnent should
have agreed to fully fund ACA. Ms. Wng-Heier replied that
even with federal funding, there would still be an issue
wi th high cost clains.

Senator Bishop stressed that the anmount of noney from the
state may be lower, had the federal governnment net their
financi al obl i gati on. V5. Wng-Heier replied in the
affirmati ve.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asserted that the federal governnment set
a nunber of incentives that anticipated cost shifting. M.
W ng- Hei er agr eed.

9:17:24 AM

Senator Dunleavy queried the future projections of the
bill, with the current fiscal note. M. Parady replied that
the bill took care of the first year. He stated that Al aska
had experienced 30 to 40 percent rate increases in each of
the last two years. He asserted that, without the bill, it
was anticipated that the 23,000 would face a simlar rate
increase in the current year. He stated that the $55
mllion addressed those high cost clains in the comng
year, and directly inpacted the rate filing that would
occur and be approved in July and August. He renmarked that
the bill left the legislature with the discretion to how it
woul d approach the issue in the future.

Ms. Wng-Heier shared that the bill also allowed for the
state to apply for Section 1332 Waiver. She stated that, in
2017, ACA allowed the state to bring ACA hone.

Senator Dunleavy wondered if there would be additional
calls upon the state to continually fund the program M.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 4 06/01/16 9:02 A M



Wng-Heier replied in the affirmative, but it nay be a
di fferent fundi ng mechani sm

9:20: 51 AM

Vice-Chair Mcciche queried the conditions that caused a
conpany to leave the state or county. M. Wng-Heier
replied that the state had no control over whether a
conpany |eaves the state. The only requirenent was
statutory noti ce.

Vice-Chair Mcciche queried the economc conditions draw
coverage to the state. Ms. Wng-Heier replied that there
was a concern about Prenera |eaving Alaska, or only
continue in the urban areas.

Vice-Chair Mcciche queried a list of future inpacts from
ACA. Ms. Wng-Heier replied that there was a hope to see
changes in the ACA to benefit Al aska and the nation.

M. Parady furthered that the issue resided wth the
federal governnent's paynent of 12.6 percent on the
anticipated risk base corridor, which was Mdda's inpetus to
| eave the state. He stated that there was not a huge vol une
of people to spread the high cost of a limted nunber of
peopl e.

9: 25: 15 AM

Senator O son wanted to ensure that the state would not
have to draw further. He queried preparations for a
possi bl e revocation of ACA. Ms. Wng-Heier replied that she
did not believe that ACA would be recalled, rather it would
be anmended.

Senator O son remarked that the |egislature was continually
confronted wth federal overreach, and the state had
control over its response to the situation. He queried the
safeguards to ensure the issue would not happen again. M.
W ng-Heier replied that she hoped that the bill would be a
saf eguar d.

Senat or O son stressed that there was not optimsmthat the

bill would be the last effort to draw from the general fund
to cover the cost of health care.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 5 06/01/16 9:02 A M



Co- Chair MacKinnon recomended history as requested by
Senator Hof fman. She remarked that everyone was concerned
about Al askans who had trouble accessing health care. She
wondered what the other states, in the 1980s enacted, other
than the high-risk pool. Ms. Wng-Heier replied that al nost
every state had a high-risk pool, but nost of them were
limted to those who were rejected from an insurance
conpany; limted in diagnoses; and were very expensive. She
shared that many people were able to get insurance, but
could not afford the insurance. Those people were then
treated through the energency room or unconpensated care.

9:30: 35 AM

Co-Chair MacKinnon stressed that the bill was not about
excluding anyone from receiving care that contributed to
their wellbeing. She requested a cut sheet on the 495. She
felt that the commttee was famliar with the cost of
health care through Medicaid and Medicare reinbursenents
for the state.

Senator Hoffman expressed concern wth mobility. He
wondered how other people noved from state to state, and
swtch their coverage under ACA. He wondered if there was
an anticipation of people examning where they could
receive the best care. M. Parady replied that Al aska was
not attractive to a highly sick individual.

Senat or Hof fman stressed that he was concerned with all the
i ndi viduals. He wondered if people |ooked to other states
that would have better or higher levels of care than other
states. Ms. Wng-Heier replied in the affirmative.

9: 35: 04 AM

Co-Chair MacKinnon asked for a graph that showed the
popul ation in the pool over 20 years.

Vice-Chair Mcciche wondered if there was a national risk
pool when considering ACA. M. Wng-Heier replied that
there were sone discussions about doing regional risk
pool s.

Vice-Chair Mcciche felt that the federal governnent should
subsi di ze that pool, in order to cover the risk pool

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 6 06/01/16 9:02 A M



Co-Chair MacKinnon requested the denographics of the
popul ation that was driving the cost.

9:38: 35 AM

Senat or Dunl eavy remarked that there was an effort to drive
down cost, but felt that the federal governnment was in
charge of driving down that cost. He felt that the bill was
only cost shifting. He did not wunderstand how that cost
woul d be reduced in the long-term M. Parady replied that
the legislature did not mss anything when dealing with the
massi ve effort of the Medicaid program

Senat or Dunleavy assuned that there was a risk of the
provi ders | eaving Al aska. M. Parady agreed.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon wondered whether the federal governnent
expanded the qualified conditions under ACA. Ms. Wng-Heier
replied in the affirmative.

M. Parady furthered that ACHIA had a definition of cost
codes. The bill proposed to take the $53 nmillion in high
cost clainms, and hand themto ACH A

Co- Chair MacKi nnon requested a sectional analysis.

9:43: 23 AM

Ms. Wng-Heier discussed the Sectional Analysis (copy on
file):

Sec. 1. AS 22.55.320 is anended by adding a new
subsection to require that the when a person with a
disability, (as defined by Title XVIII of the Social
Security Act) is to be referred by the insurer to
ACHI A.

ACHIA's admnistrator shall then request that the
State of Alaska’'s Departnment of Health and Soci al
Services provide the person with information about
applying for any federal benefits that they my
qualify for, such as Medicare or Medi caid.

Co-Chair MacKinnon wondered iif the section caused an
increase to the fiscal note. Ms. Wng-Heier replied that it
did not cause an increase to the fiscal note.

9:44: 25 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 7 06/01/16 9:02 A M



Ms. W ng-Heier continued to discuss the Sectional Analysis:

Sec 2. AS 21.55.400 anends the duties of the director
to allow the director to formulate and adopt
regul ati ons t hat are reasonabl y necessary to
adm ni ster the chapter (ACH A) and specify the covered
conditions eligible for paynment through appropriations
from the Al aska conprehensive health insurance fund
est abl i shed under AS 21.55. 430.

Sec. 3. AS 21.55.430 (a) anends the Al aska
Conprehensive Health Insurance Association (ACH A,
Chapter 55, by «creating the Alaska conprehensive
health insurance fund and by providing that the
Department of Adm nistration, shall separately account
for revenue collected as insurance prem umtax under:
AS 21.09.210 — Tax on insurers

AS 21. 33.055 — Unaut horized insurance pren um

AS. 22. 33. 061 - I ndependently procured insurance

AS 21.34.180 — Surplus lines

AS 21.66.110 — Title insurance

The net proceeds shall then be deposited into the
Al aska conprehensive health insurance fund. The
Department of Admnistration shall deposit interest
earned on the Alaska conprehensive health insurance
fund into the general fund.

(b) provides that the l|legislature nay use the annua
bal ance in the Al aska conprehensive health insurance
fund, as established in (a), to nake appropriations to
the Departnment of Commerce, Community, and Econom c
and Economc Developnent to fund the reinsurance
program under Chapter 55.

(c) states that paynment for clains under the
rei nsurance programis subject to appropriation.

(d) provides that noney in the Al aska conprehensive
heal th i nsurance fund does not | apse.

(e) states that the Alaska conprehensive health
i nsurance fund is not a dedi cated fund.

(f) defines net proceeds, as used in (a) to include
the revenue under the taxes listed in (a) less all
return premuns, fess under AS 23.05.067, errors and
other adjustnents, penalties and interest on |late
paynents.

In 2014 the division collected approximately $74M in
total receipts of which $64M was prem um taxes. O
t hat $64M approximately $5M transfers to the
Department of Labor as a Wrkers’ Conpensation Service

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 8 06/01/16 9:02 A M



Fee as required under AS 23. 05.067. The potential
woul d be that the legislature could appropriate up to
an estimted $59M based on the division’s 2015 annua
report.

The operating expenses of the division are restricted
funds and collected as licensing, surplus lines, risk
retention groups, purchasing groups certificate of
authority, continuing education, exam nation expenses,
fingerprinting and other fees in addition to
retaliatory taxes and are not be subject to this bill.

9:45: 48 AM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon wondered if there was a nexus for the
tax collection with any other expenses currently covered
from the general fund. Ms. Wng-Heier replied that 09.210
was the largest collection fromthe division, which was tax
on insurers that was generally 2.7 percent. The tax was
approximately $55 nmillion in the year prior.

Co- Chair MacKinnon queried the tax codes. M. Wng-Heier
replied that 21.09.210 was tax on insurers. She stated that
33. 061 was i ndependently procured.

Senat or Hof f man asked for clarification.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon |ooked at the sectional analysis, and
remarked that there was a list of tax codes. M. Wng-Heier
replied that they should all be 21.

Senator Hoffman wondered if it was 21 in Section 1. M.
Wng-Heier replied in the affirmative. She announced that
all codes were 21.09.210 as tax on insurers. She stated
that 21.33.055 was unauthorized insurance prem um tax. She
announced that 21.33.061 was independently procured
i nsurance. She stated that 21.34.180 was surplus lines. She
announced that 21.66.110 was title insurance, at one
percent .

Co- Chair MacKi nnon wondered when the statutes were put in
pl ace, and whether the taxes were put in place for specific
funding. Ms. Wng-Heier replied that she did not know why
the taxes were initiated.

Co-Chair MacKinnon queried a conparison to other states.

Ms. Wng-Heier replied that the state's taxes were in range
wi th other states.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 9 06/01/16 9:02 A M



Senat or Dunl eavy queried a proposed increase on any of the
taxes. Ms. Wng-Heier replied in the negative.

Senator Dunleavy surmsed that the tax would be used for
the fund. Ms. Wng-Heier replied in the affirmative.

Vi ce-Chair M cciche wondered how many states had advocated
a provider tax. He asked whether Al aska was the only state
wi thout a provider tax. Ms. Wng-Heier replied that Al aska
was the only state without a provider tax.

Vice-Chair Mcciche asked whether the state was bel ow what
would normally cover the cost. M. Wng-Heier specified
t hat she was addressing the provider-prem umtax.

M. Parady furthered that there was an analysis by the
Kai ser Commi ssion (copy on file) that addressed the
Medicaid and the uninsured. He agreed to provide further
i nformation.

9:50: 52 AM

Ms. W ng-Heier continued to discuss the Sectional Analysis:

Sec. 4. AS 21.55.500 (20) amends the definition of
“residents who are high risks” by deleting the
requirenent that the person be wunable to obtain
i nsurance coverage substantially simlar to that which
may be obtained by a person who is considered a
standard risk. Under the ACA, an insurer is no |onger
allowed to deny coverage to a person based on a pre-
existing condition making this part of statute a noot
poi nt .

Deleting this |anguage enables the creation of the
rei nsurance program and provides the director of
insurance with the flexibility needed in designing the
program by authorizing the director to supplenent the
definition of "residents who are high risk"

Sec. 5. AS 21.96 is anended by adding a new section to
allow for a waiver for state innovation. Under the

ACA, states nay submit an application to the Secretary
of the United States Departnent of Health and

Human Services requesting a waiver from certain
provisions of the Act. In order to receive this
wai ver, the state nust have enabling |egislation and

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 10 06/01/16 9:02 A M



Sec. AS 21.96.120 provides that the director of the
Division of Insurance may apply for a waiver and, if
granted, inplenment a state plan neeting the waiver
requirenents in a nmanner consistent with state and
federal |aw

Sec. 6. Provides for retroactivity for section 3.

Sec. 7. Provides for an inmedi ate effective date.

9:52: 20 AM

Ms. Wng-Heier discussed the presentation, "Departnent of
Commerce, Conmunity and Econom c¢ Devel opnent; Division of
| nsurance; HB 374 - Reinsurance Program Health |nsurance
Wai vers presented to Senate Finance; Director Lori Wng-
Hei er; May 31, 2016" (copy on file).

9:52: 29 AM

Ms. Wng-Heier |ooked at slide 2, "D vision of |Insurance":

The mssion of the Division of Insurance is to
regulate the insurance industry to protect Al askan
CONSUNEers.

* The division has a statutory responsibility to
review and approve rules, forns and rates based
on an analysis of whether they are excessive,
i nadequate, or unfairly discrimnatory.

* The division does not have statutory authority
to deny rates because of the financial inpact to
t he consuner.

Ms. Wng-Heier highlighted slide 3, "Tineline - Update":

» Septenber 2014 - Prenera’ s average increase 37.2
per cent .
Moda’ s average increase was 27.4 percent

e August 2015 - Prenera’'s average increase was 38.7
percent .
Moda’'s average rate increase was 39.6 percent

e COctober 1, 2015 — Letter received that the 2014 risk

corridor paynents wll be paid at 12.6 percent
requests

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 11 06/01/16 9:02 A M



e My 2, 2016 - Mda announces exit from Alaska’s
i ndi vi dual mar ket begi nning January 1st, 2017

e January 1, 2017 — State of Al aska has one insurer in
the individual market on/off the federally facilitated
exchange, inpacting 23,000+ Al askans

Ms. Wng-Heier discussed slide 4, "ADN to CGoverning; Al aska
made the News":

Health and Human Services: Another Health Insurer
Abandons Al aska. by Laurel Andrews

Mbda Health wll exit Alaska' s individual insurance
mar ket next year, the conpany announced Mbonday,
leaving only one health insurance provider in the
state's market that, so far, has been defined by
drastic annual rate increases for consuners and big
| osses for insurance conpanies.

Moda will focus on its other group and individual
plans in the state, it said in a release. It may
consider returning in the future but "the nmarket
requires signi ficant reform in or der to be
sust ai nabl e," the conpany said.

The exit applies only to Mda' s 14,000 custoners who
have health insurance plans on the individual
mar ket pl ace. The conpany's other nedical and dental
plans are not affected by the decision, the conpany
wr ot e.

"Qbviously this is not good news," Al aska Division of
| nsurance Director Lori Wng-Heier said after the
announcenent .

Ms. Wng-Heier highlighted slide 5 "Even the Wall Street
Journal . "

By Anna W de Mat hews and Stephani e Arnour
May 15, 2016 7:47 p.m ET

Heal t h-i nsurance custonmers in a growing nunber of

nmostly rural regions wll have just one insurer's
plans to choose from on the Affordable Care Act's
exchanges next vyear, as sone conpanies pull out of

unprofitabl e markets.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 12 06/01/16 9:02 A M



The entire states of Alaska and Al abama are expected
to have only one insurer on the health law s signature
online marketplaces next vyear, according to state
regul ators. The sanme is expected to be true in parts
of sever al ot her st at es, i ncl udi ng Kent ucky,
Tennessee, M ssissippi, Arizona and lahoma, state
regul ators said.

MVs. Wng-Heier addressed slide 6, "Washi ngton." The
conpanies were losing noney at l|east in the individual
market. The state had lost three insurers in the previous
two years.
9:54: 38 AM

Ms. Wng-Heier |ooked slide 7, "Three R s"

* Risk Adjustnent transfers nobney anong insurers to
adjust for the possibility that some insurers my get
nore or less than their proportionate share of costly
enrol | ees.

Ri sk Adjustnent is only:

Applied to the individual and small group narket;
and

Per manent program to help stabilize the costs of
t he ACA

* Reinsurance is one of the taxes associated with the
ACA and is applied against health insurance policies
and enpl oyer group health plans. Proceeds are used to
provide the individual market plans wth additional
subsidies for higher-cost enrollees. The program
sunsets in 2016

Attachment point in 2014 is $45,000 but wll
increase to $70,000 in 2015

Coi nsurance decreases from 80 percent in 2014 to
50 percent in 2015

e Risk Corridor provides a range for profits or |osses

for insurance on the FFM [If an insurer has higher
than expected profits, the federal government wll

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 13 06/01/16 9:02 A M



“claw back” some of the premuns. Conversely, if an
insurer has higher than expected |osses, the federal
government will pay the insurer additional subsidies
to of fset those | osses. This program sunsets in 2016

9:54: 49 AM

Ms. Wng-Heier discussed slide 8 "W are working to keep
the market solvent." She stated that the rates and forns
would originally filed as early as May 11, with the cutoff
date of July 15. She did not have the rates from Prenera
because they were waiting to see what woul d happen with the
bill.

Vice-Chair Mcciche |ooked at slide 7. He wondered if there
was a requirenment to cover the difference between the prior
definition for high risk and ACA. M. Wng-Heier replied
that there was no state obligation.

Vice-Chair Mcciche felt that there was a delta of what the
state was covering and the expansion for the definition of
every high risk category in ACA. He wondered why the state
woul d volunteer with the expanded definition of ACA M.
Parady replied that the issue was not the expanded
definition, rather ACA required universal coverage.

Co-Chair MacKinnon wondered iif there was an unfunded
mandate to the state if ACA required universal health care.

Vice-Chair Mcciche he felt that the answers were opposite
of one anot her.

9: 58: 55 AM
AT EASE

10: 02: 34 AM
RECONVENED

10: 02: 42 AM

Co-Chair MacKinnon recalled a conversation to refine the
answer to the people of Al aska.

Vice-Chair Mcciche remarked that the federal governnent
had made requirenments under ACA, and the state did not put
pressure on the federal government to cover that unfunded
mandate. He remarked that the state had volunteered to

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 14 06/01/16 9:02 A M



cover the additional risk. M. Parady replied with slide 7,
and slide 11, "Actuarial Analysis.”

Vice-Chair Mcciche appreciated that response. He stressed
that ACA may not work for Al aska.

Co- Chai r MacKi nnon requested denographic criteria.

10: 08: 43 AM

Ms. Wng-Heier highlighted slide 9, "Funding Mechani sns":

* Version A of HB 374 funded the reinsurance program
by anending statute to allow for an assessnent to
insurers based on total covered lives. This funding
mechani sm woul d have increased costs for organizations
and businesses purchasing stop |oss insurance by
approximately 20 dollars per covered life, and nmet
with strong opposition by those inpacted, such as
school districts.

* In version P, the programis funded by creating the
Al aska conprehensive health insurance fund and
separately accounting for i nsurance premum tax
revenues which would then be appropriated by the
Legislature to pay for ACH A Previously, the prem um
taxes lapsed to the general fund after Dbeing
col | ect ed.

Ms. W ng-Heier discussed slide 10, "Prem um Taxes":

Annual collections of premum taxes for the prior
three fiscal years are: $52 nmillion in FY2013; $55
mllion in FY2014; and $64 million in FY2015.

*AS. 21.09. 210 — Tax on insurers

*AS 21.33.061 — Independently procured insurance;
prem um t ax

*AS 21.34.180 — Surplus lines tax

*AS 21.66.110 - Annual tax on title insurance
prem umnms

Ms. W ng-Hei er addressed slide 12, "2017 Rate Filings":
e Prenera nust file rates with DO by 7/15/16

» Rates nust be approved 8/23/16
* Open enroll nment begins 11/1/16

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 15 06/01/16 9:02 A M



* Is then effective 1/1/17

e In order to include the reinsurance program in the
2017 rate filings, the insurer nust have two weeks'
notice of the amount (if any) appropriated under HB374

10: 09: 29 AM

Senator Dunleavy queried the tine frane. He felt that the
bill was cost sharing. He wondered whether the $195, 000
insured in perpetuity, or only the current issues. M.
Parady clarified that the structure was to take the clains
associated with the cost codes. He explained that the
i ndi vidual would continue to retain their insurance, but
the cost codes would nove to ACHIA. He stated the tine
frame was a one-year treatnent to sustain the individual
market. He remarked that the problem would not disappear
after one year.

Senator Dunleavy felt that there would be annual continued
request of funding to continue to support the issue. M.
Parady agreed, coupled with work to be done on sourcing
from mechani sns ot her than the general fund.

Co-Chair MacKinnon surmsed that the legislation would
establish a fund by taking a current revenue stream to
charge the fund. M. Parady replied in the affirmative.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon announced that noving the noney would
cause a "hole" in the general fund.

Senat or Dunl eavy wondered what would occur to the
appropriated noney in the general fund. M. Parady agreed
wi th Co-Chair MacKi nnon's conment.

Senator Dunleavy surmsed that it was a cost-shift. M.
Parady replied that "there's no free |unch.™

Senator Dunleavy felt that the hole in the general fund did
not disappear. M. Parady stressed that the utilized funds
were generated from a nexus associated with health care.

Co-Chair MacKi nnon commented that she assuned that the
taxes were initiated to fund sonething el se.

Senator O son recalled that there was a nedical nal practice

issue in the 1980s. He wondered if the bill was adequate to
ensure nore providers cone to the state, and queried the

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 16 06/01/16 9:02 A M



timeline for that effort. Ms. Wng-Heier replied that there
had been an exam nation of that issue in the 1980s. She
hoped that the bill would not cause the sane result.

Senator O son queried how long the "pendulunt would sw ng
back. Ms. Wng-Heier hoped for three or four years before
the conpetition would return to Alaska. There was a hope
for an innovation waiver at that tine.

10: 15: 30 AM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asserted that she was not famliar with
the issues in the 1980s. Ms. Wng-Heier replied that there
was no nedical nmalpractice insurance in the state in the
1980s. She agreed to provide further information.

Co- Chair MacKinnon wondered if the state charged the
doctors a mualpractice fee. Ms. Wng-Heier replied in the
affirmati ve.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon queried the opinion on that fee. M.
Wng-Heier replied that it was exam ned as a solution for
the current year. She did not reconmend it.

Senator O son surm sed that that recomrendati on was not yet
occurring. Ms. Wng-Heier agreed.

Senator O son recalled that the high risk pregnancy
coverage was becom ng inpossible in the 1980s.

Senat or Dunl eavy renmarked he was concerned about the hole
in the general fund.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon remarked that the hole would be in place
in perpetuity.

Senator O son recalled that it took three years to nove
back to normal, without a drastic draw in the general fund.

Senat or Dunl eavy wondered if there was a hope that it would
only be three or four years, and the conpetition would
close that gap. Ms. Wng-Heier replied in the affirmative.

Senat or Dunl eavy struggled wth the title of t he
"Affordabl e Care Act."

10: 21: 25 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 17 06/01/16 9:02 A M



Co- Chair MacKi nnon remarked that there should be a sunset
date on the bill to encourage the departnent to return to
the legislature to keep the fund.

Senator Dunleavy remarked that there may be a noral
obligation that would be inpossible to shift.

Senator Bishop felt that the legislature should work wth
the departnent to conme to a solution

Senator dson remarked that Prenera was watching the

progress of the bill, and would nmake their business
decisions by md-July. She wondered whether a sunset was a
positive or negative i npact on Prenera's busi ness

decisions. M. Parady shared that a sunset would not
detract fromthe overall progress of Prenera.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon remarked that insurance was one of the
nmost conplex subjects cone before any conmttee in the
| egi sl ature. She stressed that it was broad, connected, and
inter-woven with many other state and federal actions. She
remarked that there was a profit at three different |evels
of the bill. She wondered how, under the rate filing, the
state determ ned an acceptable provider when and insurance
provi der guaranteed at |east 80 percent. She wondered how
closely the profits were nonitored. Ms. Wng-Heier replied
that the benefits were a contributing factor to prem uns.

10: 30: 20 AM

Vice-Chair Mcciche stressed that he wanted to ensure that
t he people had the best possible care. He wanted to ensure
that the state did not pay for care that was not related to
their condition. He felt that the state needed to contro
cost across the board. He wondered how the wunnecessary
expenses would be restricted. Ms. Wng-Heier replied that
those efforts often resulted in the insurance conpany
interfering with health care.

Senator Dunleavy renmarked that nmany doctors conducted
extrene diagnostic work, because of the nmalpractice
protocols requirenments. He wondered why there was not an
appropriation request. M. Wng-Heier replied that the
original bill specifically said that it would be from the
prem um taxes. She could not speak to the change.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 18 06/01/16 9:02 A M



M. Parady furthered that the bill was anmended in House
Fi nance Conmittee.

10: 36: 03 AM

Ms. Wng-Heier discussed slide 13, "Section 1332 Innovation
Wi ver " :

Al aska should explore a Section 1332 I nnovation Wi ver
to allow the state to withdraw from the ACA if, and
subject to nmany provisions, the state could provide
the sane benefits to consunmers wi thout any additional
cost to the federal governnent.

States that are working on 1332:

e Col orado

* M nnesota
 Hawai i

e Massachusetts

Ms. Wng-Heier |ooked at slide 14, "Section 1332 | nnovation
Wi ver " :

* Provide coverage at |east as conprehensive as under
t he ACA

* Provide coverage and protection against excessive
out - of - pocket expenditures at |east as affordable as
t hat provided under the ACA

« Cover a nunber of residents conparable to the nunber
who woul d be covered under the ACA

* Not increase the federal deficit

e Must be authorized by the State Legislature

* Devel oped through a public process

e« A state that is granted an innovation waiver that
restricts access to premum tax credits, cost-sharing
reduction premiunms or the snmall enployer tax credit
can be paid the amounts that would have been paid to

its residents under these progranms to finance its
wai ver program

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 19 06/01/16 9:02 A M



10: 38: 44 AM

M. Parady noted that the attenpt was to build on the
foundation of Medicaid reform develop the innovation
wai ver to provide for possible future change; and exam ne
new concepts. He felt that the sunset as an inpetus to the
deeper work was wel | - founded.

Senator Bishop felt that all the discussions boiled down to
cost and the delivery of services. He noted that there may
need to be a working group to exam ne the issue.

Co-Chair MacKinnon noted that the original pr oposal
included cost-sharing with the rate payers. There was
pushback from the self-insured on that proposal. Co-Chair
MacKi nnon asserted that there could be a one-tine
appropriation and share it in the sanme structure as the
original proposal. Ms. Wng-Heier replied that there were
parts. She explained that every enployee and dependent who
were either self-insured or fully insured paid the
rei nsurance of $2.25 per nmenber per nonth. She stated that
it was originally at $6 in 2014 for the federa
rei nsurance. She stressed that the paynents would sunset in
the current year. She shared that the original thought was
to have the paynents directed to the state. She renmarked
that it had not been incorporated into the 2017 budget,
because of the sunset. She remarked that everyone paid a
tax, and the analysis showed approximtely $30 per nenber
per nmonth for individual plans and $18 per nenber per nonth
for enployer plans. She remarked that a stop |oss happened
at large enployers self-insurance, so the prem um was nuch
less than a fully insured person. She stated that the 3
percent at stop loss only was nuch less than the other
pl an.

10: 44: 02 AM

M. Parady furthered that the proposal was included in
previous |egislation SB 206, there were 236,000 suggested
covered lives and 160,000 were in the stop | oss category.

Senat or Dunl eavy queried asked for age to be included in
the denographic information. M. Wng-Heier agreed to
provi de that information.

Senator Dunl eavy wondered how closely the division had
wor ked with the insurance conpanies. Ms. Wng-Heier replied

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 20 06/01/16 9:02 A M



that the division had worked closely with the insurance
conpanies to ensure that the mechanism of the reinsurance
woul d work to stabilize the market.

Senator Dunleavy surm sed that the bill would stabilize the
market. Ms. Wng-Heier replied in the affirmative.

Senator Dunl eavy assuned that the state would attract nore
i nsurance conpanies to the state with the passage of the
bill. Ms. Wng-Heier replied in the affirmative.

Vice-Chair Mcciche understood the intention of the bill.
He felt that there could be to ways to approach the bill
stabilizing the market or providing further cash. He felt
that there should be downward pressure, and the services
offered that require paynent. M. Wng-Heier replied that
there was not a clear answer to the concern. She stated
that the ACA was in its infancy.

Vice-Chair Mcciche remarked that there should be a point
of where the cost codes becane adequate care without being
an "open checkbook."

Senat or Dunl eavy appreciated the sumary.

10: 49: 45 AM
AT EASE

10: 51: 35 AM
RECONVENED

10: 51: 43 AM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon announced that anendnents were due the
foll owi ng day by noon.

CSHB 374(FIN) was HEARD and HELD in conmittee for further
consi der ati on.

#
ADJ OQURNIVENT
10: 53: 10 AM

The neeting was adjourned at 10:53 a. m

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 21 06/01/16 9:02 A M



